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CEYLON, IN MAPS.
By )
R. L. BROHIER, F.R.G.5.

Tha unknown and bhe mygterious always possess a very
special fascination for the majority of mankind. Thus it ‘eomes
about that the maps of lormer days appeal to a certain side of our
nature in a manner that no modern maps with their beauty of
colouring and accuracy of information can rival,

Time wag, when the post Swilt, in facetious relerenca to
the maps of tho * dark continent,” wrota the following well-known
lingg 1

Geographers in Alric's maps

Put savage beasts to fill up gaps:
And o’er uninhabitable downs
Placed elephants for want of Towns!

This" happy expression very apbly sums up ths delights popu-
larly claimed for old-time eartography. Cteneral ideas on the sub-
ject have, howaver, since undergone some measure of change, and
old maps do nol a$ the present day atfract attention merely on
aceount of their sbrangeness and deeorabive gualities, There is
definitely something to ba gathered from the old-time maps hesides
the faseinabion of seeing a familiar country depieted in an unfami-
liax guise. There is also something more than that element of mys-
tery and romance introduced by the rieh picborial effect of finely
drawn ships, and strange monsters emerging from the sew, or in-
habiting blank spots on land, which ko some people ig the uhmm
offerod by the maps of 4 by-gone pericd.

Beveral old maps of Ceylon ameng the ecollections aé the
Museum, at the Archives, and in the office of the Surveyor General,
gonfirm and even amplify the Gechnique withily presonted by the
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posh in the lines guobed sarlier. In bhe light of thage limitations,
the earlisr maps sannot be said to afford any contribuiion to geo-
graphical ideas, and their special value has therefore to be agsessad
in diversa ways, Closer study digselosss that the majority of them
offer copious notes deséribing tha loeal history and topograpby,

" & feature on which modern map-makers do nobt appeat to place a

premium.

Before the birth of history, the adventurous Ishmaelites or
Arabs were the great commercial peopls of whose deoings aund dis-
coveries we have any secount. It may be conjectured that they
and their mora experiencad geamen, who pilofed tha fleets of Solo-
mon cenburies later in search of the luxuries of the Bast, were
likely to have known this Tsland, -

These circumsatances were parhaps favourable to tha acguisi-
tion aod diffusion of geographical knowledge, bubt geography being
in its infancy, the geographical facty concerning the Island could
not have exfiended bevond a collaetion of romantic marvels. And
g0, Taprobang, which was the name by which Ceylon was known
to the Greeks and Romans—probably from Topa-Eavana, ' the
fand of Bavana "—must have besn to EBurope nofhing more than a
name until the conquests of Alexander.

Pliny the elder {23-79 A.D.) is the first European writer to put
aside the confused notices concerning this island we call Ceylon,
. which had been previously eirculated. The principal features of
his account are derived from the information that fsll to his lot to
collact from the Ambassadors senti by the King of Taprobane to
Emparor Qlaudiug (44 A1), Since this new information wag
derived from those who declared “‘that which they had heard,
which they had sesen with their own eye, which they had looked
upon, and which their hands had handled”, the geographieal
account of Ceylon by Pliny olaims te have put aside fabulous
tales,

_ Neatrly a cantury later, Ptolemy developed the ideas of all hig
prodecessors to afford us the most remarkable map of Ceylon.
 Claudive Ptolemy, mathematician and geographer, wag an Egyptian
who buswd himself with his researches at Alexandria between the
years 127 and 151 A.D. He fixed his distances and constructed
his maps on the reporfs earried to him by mariners and by means
of the itineraries and journals of trading voyagers. It i true thag
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he lived in one of the great commercial centres and would appear
to have heen agsiduous in collecting waterial, But these were
imperfect and meagre sources of informatkion, as proved by ths fact
that he gava to this Isla.nd an area nearly fifteen times its actual
size.

Nobwithstanding this defect, Ptolemy's representation of

' Covlon is in fhe main remarkably aceurate. His map proves that

Ceylon of his fime had been theovoughly circumnavigated, and that
the men who gave him information of the Island had certainly
examined it fairly closely. Few of the place names marked by
Ptolemy even distantly recall their modern ecountierparts, bub
some can skill be recognised by the general reader aven in their
garbled shape.

From the eight to the eleventh cenbury, the Arabs, who ha.d
been familiar with Ceylon before it wag known to Greek or Roman,
exercised the same infiuence over the opulent commeres of Ceylon
which was afterwards enjoyed by the Portuguese and Dutch.

Authorities hold that the maps of the Arabian peographers
ware far behind their books.. The one who dwells most largely on
Ceylon is Edrisi.* He adopts the Arabian modification of Ptolemy’s
error, and carries Africa eastward and places it south of the shores
of India. He makes two islands out of Ceylon on his map.
"Saranda’, ha says, is 1,200 miles in circumference and “'Sarandib”

"18.80 miles long and 80 broad. The common error that the Maha-

weli Ganga divided Cevlon into two canbe traced back to the Greek
gaographars

. -It was only after Vasco da Gama doubled tihe Cape that moxe
aceurate maps of Ceylon began to be made. Incident upon the .
great development of Portuguese navigation, the palm for gupre-
macy in chart- -making passed to that nation. The supetb ornate-

_ness of Portugnese eraftsmanship is demonstrated by the maps of
Fernao Vaz Dourado, who is said to have received his initial train-

ing in map-making at Goa. e, and a contemperary worker who
wag also horn in India-——Diogo Botelho Pareirs, conhr:buted the
earliest special maps of Ceylon anﬂ China. :

“Tn the sixteenth century, Cypriano Sanchez, a Spaniard, gave
the Island the shape of an almost rectilinear pentagon, This map

* Oridrisi. He appears to have made a ma.p of the World on & sllver
plate for his patron, King Roger of Sicily.
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indicates the move prominenb coasb fowng, the best known stages
of the routes from Colombo to Kandy, states that Yala had been
abandoned some thrae hundred years earlier for insalubrity, locates
* ganks from which elephants drink ™ in the neighbourhood of
QGiant’s Tank, and marks the greater part of the rest of the island
ag " abandoned eountry ", ‘' impenetrable forest "', or more impres-
sively conveys fhis information pietorially.

A note on the map conveys the information that this represen-
tation of the Island of Ceylon was given by the distinguished Petor
Maneius to Gerhard Kremer, more famous under his latinised name
of Geradug Mereator, for ingertion in his atlas. The special value
of this map rests on a lengbhy series of geographicailand topo-
graphical noteg of a contempnraneous aga, in Latin text, on the
back of it.

“ Veilan”’, the topographist records, ‘' pre-eminent among the
islands, lies not far from the promontary of Comeorin, its circumfer-
encs is 240 leagues or asg others say 800 or 900 miles ”'. The climate
and fertility of the soil are raplurously expressed in ‘the following
linog :—  The mildness of the elimabe is remarkable and its tempe-
rateness beyond belief, for neither the summer ner the winter is

inelement.” The fertile land is for ever in bloom, Divers kind of

flowers are culled, so much ", the writer goes on to say, " that one
may sing with the Bard;
Bright Spring i here; Earth here pours forth the flowers
Of varying hue around the flowing streams "’

Oneo of the fabulous stories, which was cirenlated by the Arabs
in order to conceal from rival fraders the source of the cinnamon
supply, iz eorrasted in these notes, ‘' Cinnamon, which Herodotus
hag related is found in the nests of birds, especially of Phoenix,
grows in great abundance and pre-eminent quality "

A later map with the title ** Insula Zeilin Olim Taprobana
nune incles Tenarigim ' makes a distinet advance on the shape
given to the Island in the earlier maps. It appears to be a Datch
edition of the map of Sanchez, the Spanish carbographer, and

practioally retains the original letber-press. The only clue fo the -

date of thiz map is the deseripbive nole assigning a position fo Jan
Thyssen’s Batitery erected soon after the eapbure of the Portuguese
Fort of Batticaloa in 1688. Another map of French origin and
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similar in most respeots to the map last mentioned was produced
about the same fime by Siear Sanson, Geographer Royal. It
earries the title * Oeylon and the Maldives—The Island of Ceylon
which is tha Taprobane of the Ancients .

- The next map in chronologieal sequence is by Nicholas
Visscher, who came of a family of art dealors and engravers,
and the largest map-producers in Amsterdam. He was himself an
artiat of congiderabla merit, and had executed pictures of various

towns in Holland before he devobad his talent to cartography.

T An intoresbing feature in Visscher's map is the number of
fresh-water springs marked along the coast, Flags indicate the
various Forts and outposhs established by the Dutch Company,
while minute skstches of buildings, trees and hills, give a gmphlc
picture of the physieal appearance of the ground.

Very strangely, on the coash between the Walawe River and
Babticaloa, the topographical notes become specially copious; in
sequences these notes read as follows :—"' Tkrindi Oya, Pattenegala
-3 greab roek which is named the Flophant by sailors and where
there is always {resh water, Boilgpatte—the beginning of the Babti-
oalon District, here there is u close wabeh post with moafi; Buffalo
Stables balonging fo the Temple Tricol (Tirrukkovil), Pannichiotam
—from here to Batbicaloa the country is inhabited and is planted
with coconub trees ”

The author's knowledge of the Kandyan terrifory appears fo
have been very meagre. It would be rsagonable to assume thab the

. -map was issued before 1681, ag nons of the chronological informa-

tion afforded by Robert Knoxz in- his " Historical Relation of
Coaylon" has heen incorporafed. : '

"Qeylon onece callad by ifs inhabitanta Taprobane, the greatest
and likewise the richest Island in the Indian Qcean, most accurate-
ly engraved on copper and reproduced under the direction and ak
tho charge of Tobias Conrad Lofte, Tmperial Engraver, and Geo-
grapher”, ig the title of a map which appears %o bear a German
biag., I is closely founded on Visscher's production. Topographi-
eal notes in Gierman $axt are contained within san ornamental bor-
der at the leit top cormer of the map, of which a translation has

" recently been made by the Rov. P. Lucien Jansz, Among othor
> ikems outlining the topography and history of the Island, the old

tiale is recorded thab * the inhabitants believe that the terrestrial
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" paradise wae sibuated hore, and contend that it must he so, because
they have here tha high mounfiain Adam’s Peak, where presumably
Adam Hes buried”. A reasonable date for the map may be con-
structed from the note thab ‘' the Hollanders have here built
gsovaral Forbs, and, as is wall known, ate carrying on a trade of
great profit to themselves, with the whole island at their disposal 7,

The next map which cnlls for notice is a produetion of.Guil-

Iaume De Lisle, ons of the earlisst Frenchmen o advance carto-
graphy tio the state of an exact sclenee.™ It has been disclosed that
in his researches he was aided by the Surveys of sastern countries
carried out by the Jesuita. In this map Ceylon is divided info six
provinces deseribed as * the Kingdom of Jafanapatan”, " the coun-

try of tha Vannias inhabifed by the Malabars™, * the country of '

the Veddhas” which ha plaees north-east of Aunuradhapura to

include Padawiya, * Battioaloa or Matiealoa ”, "'the Kingdom of
Kandy”, and " the cinnamon country, formerly called the King-
dom of Cota’. The boundaries of these divisions are coloured

The coastline between, Mannar and the Jaffna lagoon has been
incorrectly delineated, giving to the Island a greatly elongated
“neck”, and Tanawara with itsgTemple has not been identified
with Dondra but is indicated several miles further east with Matara
in between,

Portuguese, English and Duotch influences are discernible in
the compilation. The place names quoted by Knox in hiz Hisbori-

cal Relation are braceable in Horsepot for the modern Haris Paf-

tuwa, Poncipot for Palis Pattuwa efec. DBander-coos-walt or
Bandara Kos Watta, where Knox spent many yvears of his eapti-
vity is shown near Nicavarr or Nikaweratiya. The ruing of Cote
and the palace of the King are also given prominence and the Salt-
pans are marked along the eoast. This map is dated 1722,

A new map of the Island of Ceylon published at Amsterdam
by Isaak Tirion about the year 1754 bears a marked resemblance
to Da Lisle’s map. - The game digtorsion of the northern peninsuia
or " neck " of Ueylon has been reprodueced. The boundaries of the
Cinnamon Distriets, however, bave been indieated aftor the fashion
gat by Vizscher fowarda fhe cloge of the preceding century. The
eentral, province deseribed as '' Kanda Uda" is packed with
nomenelature presumably derived from Knox, whi!e the name of

T* His map of The World (mi-}oo) is accepted as the most accurate map
of that date. .
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the capital is spelt in the modern manner ™ Kandy ™ for the first
time,

It has baen disclosed by our ohservations thatb the cartography
of Usylon hag followed the general principle of amendments and
improvements on earlier attempts at mapping. Summing up, it
may be said with general truth that sines the contribution made by
Réolemy, the maps of Usylon had more analogy fo earicatures {rom

- a carbographical point of view, as wa knowit, than to anything pro-
" petly geographieal,

Emerging from this period of stagnation in seisnfific carto-
graphy, we now come to some Dulich productions. The seventeenth
century wag really the age of Dutch eartographers and their craft-
manship bears testimony to their enterprise in the hoyday of their
colonial expansion. While being valuable from both a geographical

. and a hisborieal stand-point, the Dutch maps of Ceylon are remark-

able lor their minuteness of detiail and the accurate knowledge they
digplay, not only of the constal and maritime %ones, buf also of the
more remote interior.

Rarly stbention seoms fto have been given to hydrographie
cartography in order bo secure plans which would help navigation
and gafe anchorage. ' .

Iu this olass, we have a very interasting set of maps showing

avery likely anchorage on the easfiern and soubhern coanst, from
Trincomales to Galle, They have all been done by one SUrVeyor,

“Johannes van Keulen, sbout the year 1670. They all bear title

and explanatory notes in Duteh, By way of an ezample, the
following is the Fnglish rendering of the notes on one of them :(—

¢ Venloos Bay. In theriver there are reaches of nasty sunken rock
alternating with good anchorage ground, then again, rocky
beds followed by sandy bottom—is about a musket shot in
width,
In the vacht Buyks loot
this z7th day of May, in the year 1671

One of the maps of tho series referred to, shows tha coastline
and waber-ways from Batticaloa to Kalmunai. Ib proves to ug

what an useful purposs old.maps secve in helpmg to idontify place
names or link up history.

Off Kalmunai thera ig a large village called Samanturai,
derived from fho Malay sampan, a boat, and furad, a fsrry or
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harbour. Although the placs’is now al lengt 4 miles away from
any navigable sheet of watber, it wag originally the boat ha.rbou_r ab
the extreme end of tho Batticaloa Lagoon. The map shows it as
guch, and indicatey that 270 years ago ths Dutch had » Fort here
and a large mark.

Another ramarkable map which was completed much about the
game bime, and is dated 1720, would appear fo have been eompiled
primarily to h_al'p church organizaion and government, It isa
precise delineation of the northern peninsula, on a scale which is
approximately # of a mile to the inch, In size the mapis 72 x 41
inches. Tho following ie a translation of the description and ex-
planatory notes which appear on the map in Duteh :

«Map of the four Jaffna provinces and the adjacent islands, inhabited
and uninhabited, exhibiting the size of each province, the number of
churches and villages situated within each of them, together with their
names, the main roads, tanks and elephant stalls; all of which are separately
depicted, each church being shown along with its villages by a particular
colour ; further, the litile blue ovals represent water-tanks. )

The province of Valikaman comprises fourteen churches, to-wit;

Vaddukoddai - Uduvil” Puttur
Chankanai Mallagam Kopay
Mayiliddi Vannarponnai Nallur
Achchuveli Teilipalai and
Pandatarippu Manipay © 5t, Joan.

The provinee of Vadamaradchi, three churches, viz;
Udupiddy, Kaddavelli and Parrititurai. -
The province of Thenmaradchi, five churches, as follows
Navatlkuli, Chavacachcheri, Varanni, Kachchai and Eluthuma-
dunval.
The province of Pachchilapali, four churches, to wit ;
Mugamalati . .
Plopallai This province is set off on the map with woods
Thambagamam -and litile trees, since it is covered with woods and
and ’ jaggery trees, (Palmyra palms).
Muliipattai
The adjacent islands comprise seven churches, namely : )
Uraturai, Velanai and Allapitty, Pungadutivu or Middleburg.
Analaitivu, which is Rotierdam or Dona Clara. Nayinativu, or
Haarlem.
Jaffrapatnam, the 28th January, A.D. 17z0.
M. Leusekan, Sworn Land Surveyor.
————— Scale, 2000 Rhenish roods.

The ** Blephant Brug " or Elephaunt Bridge, on the Tsland of
Amaterdam, or Karaitivn as we know ib, marks the spot from which
all the elephants captured in the Vannie and housed temporarily
in the numerous HElephant Stables shown on the map, ware loaded
into boats and ghipped to India.

Very decided development on ravenue lines is festified by
another boautiful eoloured map which iz dated 1719, The follow-

DUTCH BURGHER UNION - 83

S o S s O b 1t

ing detailed deseription which appears on the map in Dutch,
explaihs several features represented on it :— ’
¢ Map of the Island of Ceylon mainly exhibiting, in the south-western
portion, the twelve corles or provinces belonging to the ferritory of the
Hon'ble East India Company, illustrated in yellow blue and red colours
respectively and extending from the river Caymellet to that of Walawe;
also, the demarcation therefrom of the Kandyan King's land, marked off
in brown ; further, the expanse of the luxuriant citnamon bushes from the
ilaw river to the Hook of Dondia, enclosed within a red line, (after the
style, with the stippled line, adopted in the map of Ceylon printed at
Amsterdam by Nicolas Visscher) especially Maradana® sitwated im the
Salpitty corle, where the best of that fragrant bark is peeled, to be seen
within the compass of A, B.C. D, E, F. G. H.;? next, by means of the
numerical syuthols, from 1 to 46, @ survey, beginging from Colembo, can
be made of the ordinary land routes along which the Cinnamon Captain
annualy makes his general visitation at the commencement of theharvest ;
indicating, moreover, with a red circle the villages and places in which,
and at which the cinnamon peelers, during the peeling season, .commonly
pitch their tents in order to gather that costly bark, which is subsequent-,
ty carried on their shouiders and transported with great labour for delivery
at the following five places, namely :— ) .
Negombo, Colombo, Beruwsla, Galle and Matara.” .
Thus compiled and drawn up to the esteemed order, and for the
inspection of, H. E, Dr. Isaac Augusiin Rumpf, Counciller-Extraordi--
nary of Netherlands India, Governor and Director of the Island of
Ceylien, the coast of Madura, Ichiado 5, ete.
* Colombo, this mid-October day, in the
year 1719, .
) by me Johannes van Campen,
B et st e e e s ans e SCAYe of ten Dutceh hours” march, each of
eight thousand paces.
rivenoens SCale of thirty Sinhalese hours® march
sixty to a day. : E
ceieennn o S0ale of ten German miles,
fifteen to a degree. e
cirerinees e Scale of six Sinhalese miles, each of
: ~ thirty-two hundred Rhenish roods, =
N.B.—There are added afso here various pearl banks which were ins-
pected at the beginning of this year, 1719, in such order as
the red stippled lines from Talaimannar to Caymelle indicate.

1, The Dutch referred o the Maha Oya as the river Caymelle,

2. Literally, ** The sandy soil.” : o

3. This includes ¢ Mardane, Wellicadde, Kirlepana, Bamblepitie.”’

: The numerical symbols indicate that starting from Celenibo, the
Cinnamon Captain kept to the following route: ¢ Negombe,
Pitigal Corle, Hapitigam Corle, Sinna Corle, Hewagam Corle,
Raygam Corle, Passedum Corle, Wallalawite Corle, Gale Corle,
Billigam Corle, Morewa Corle, Doloos Daas Corle {consisting -of
‘Gangaboda and Welabadde Pattus of the Matara Digtrict and
the East and West Girawa Pattus of Hambantota District)

- returning thereafter along the coast of Colombo. ‘ )

4. .The Captain of the Mahabedde or Great Department, ie. The

. Cinpamon Department, .

5. " The Bay " or Engeada, i.e. The Bay of Tuincorin, :

6. The scales are very remarkable and demonstrate at -a glance the
several advantages they offer for assessing data invaluable to a
Revenue Officer. The Rhenish rood is equivalent to 18,75 links
approximately. - :

Froi a comparative stand-poing, the general scale of the map is a
little lesy than four miles to the Inch, : '
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The title and deseriptive fext of this map are imprinted on a
plinth which supports the figure of an elepbant. Along the left
tusk of the animal represented, the word * CEYLON " is inscribed.
Projecting above the right tusk, is a braneh with leaves of the cin-
namon tree. . On the ground besida the figure of the elephant four
bundles of cinnamon quills are ‘depicted, two by its fore legs and
two bohind.. The back-ground is filled in by a landscape, wilb
trees, cinnamon bushes, and eight cocoanut palms prominently dis-
played. - Suspended from the elephant’s tusks are two shields on
which are emblazoned the coats of arms of the various ** Comp-
toirs " or sub-divisions.” :

‘The device represonts the Dubeh Arms of Ceylon, apd is sup-
. posed to have been taken over by them from the Portuguese,®

To be contindad

The, shield placed tg the left of the figure of the elephant introduce
the heraldic arms of Colombo, Galle, Jafina and Manaar. The heraldic
arms of Trincomalee, Matara, Batticoloa and Calpentyn, are displayed on

“the shield to the right, There were three other Comploirs, namely, Chilaw,
Negombo and Cotiaar which had separate arms. These have not been given
a place in the peraldic achievement of the Island.

8. It was only recently that the Ceylon Government applied to the
British College of arms for a regular Coat of Arms to replace the badge
which for over a hundred years appeared on the colonial flag and was also
displayed in the past on the panels of railway carriages. This badge, it
will be recalled, displayed an elepbhant and a dagoba.

The present Arms of the Colony was granted nnder Royal Warrant,
dated 1yih December, 1906, and is blazoned: On @ mouni vert belween a
Grove of eight coconut frees and Mountains in perspeciive an elephani affronies
all prr. Tt will readily be noticed that the Datch Arms of Ceylon hasbeen
the basis for the design wiich wasadopted by the British heralds,
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THE DUTCH REFORMED CHURCH
IN CEYLON, 1602--1795,

Extracts from a work on “* De Hervormde Kerk i
Nederlandsch Qost indie” :
by C. A. L. van Troostenburg de Bruyn,
lately Predikant at Batavia.

- Transtated by the late P. H. dé Vos Esq., ddvocats, and
prepared for publication by Dr. H. U. Leembruggen.

(Continued from page 15 of our last issue).
" CHAPTER IX.

| Charities. , :

The Qrphan House in Colombo, in the beginning of the previ-
ous qenbllry, wag under the deacons ag curators, and was under the -
uha.rg.e of a matron and school-master, Bub the'descons in 1704
1707 grossly mismanaged the funds. * : ‘

st P %

But works of chayityﬁwera nofb earried on in and for the Indies .
only., The deacons ofﬂVlissingen -received an exbraordinary token of
gra&itude from the Fast Indies, Jan de Feber, who lsft as a school-
bay from the Orphan House there, enlisted in 1678 as a cabin boy
and’ died in Ceylon in 1731, appointed the roor of the Dubch’
Reformed Church of his native town as hia " universal ” heir, by
which means the deaconry of Vlissingen received such g splendid
legacy as it had never received before, viz., £4,808.2.0,=1.28,848.12.

Doctrine.

That the doetrine of the Reformed Church was the. only cne
recognized, clearly appears, and it was so in Ceylon in the gecond
half of the former century, as those who have heen to Qhureh there

inform us. " Den 18 ten Febr., 1770, als om Sontage” ' vormis-
tags ging in de Hollandsche kirche (te Colombo) und " * horete den
reformisten Prediger Herr (Hendrik) Philipz, Prediger”, ' uber

Joh. 8. 10. Bris von geburb ein Singalasa, Nachmittags ' horete
El'iem}: (Henvicus) Bilvius wher das Sontags-pensum aus den
Heidelbergsche Oabechism”. Eight days laler, {as relates the
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same ear and eye-wisness) :— ' Den 25 de Heb. 1770, wohnate ich ™
* don Nederlandschen Gottesdienst met hey. Vormittags horete ™
“ Harm': {Henricus) Silvius uber das erste pensum aus der Passions-
Geschicte 7" Chrisbi, und nachmitbags Ferr Ondaatje uber den
Heidelbergsehan ' Ca.t'.echlsm predigen .t

When the Duteh had driven the Portuguese out of Caylon the
Reformed Religion was introduced there. - Bub it was rumoured in
‘Amsterdam that it was intended in Rome, as scon as a favourable
opportunity should csceur, that is, if any places might again come
‘urider the power of Portugal, to again introduce the Roman Catholic
religion, and send some bishops there, The Chureh Couneil of the
Capital heing a.larmed resolvad thab the matter should be investi-

gated by the Advocate Van Dam and others.”

The Roman Catholic priegks, however, contin_uad to preach
. their doetrines, againgt which the Government izsued a placaat on
the 12th August, 1682, Ii was in vain that on the 19th January,
 1711,-the King of Portugal, by his plenipotenbiary, the Count of
Tarocea, sought from the States of Holland and West Hriesland
free observanca of the Roman Catholic religion, with some churches
_and priests, for the inhabitants of Colombo and other places in
Qoylon. The European olergy were bamshed and hrought to the
Continent of Burope. ‘

Those priests and school-masters who embraced the Reformed
religion were re-appointed to the Dutbch congregations. The laity
were not so mueh pergsonted as the clergy, on account of their intri-
gues.” 8o, early in 1658, it was prohibited to give them lodging on
pain of death ; later,in 1715, open meetings and private conventicles
ware forbidden *.
the songregation. There was, for example, a bax laid on their
marriages which was so high that it almost amounted to & prohibi-
tion.? The adult population of Ceylon still seemed sbrongly
attached to Popery ; the Reformed Church had their hopes mostly
with the youths.®

Mission anstalten 1770, Halle 1776. S 537/538.
.Ordin, Verg, kerken Herv, gem, t¢ Amst, 1 Decr., 1678,
. Ludovici. t.a.p. bL. 6.
- Tenment. t.a.p. bl. 40.
- Pridham. t.a.p. 1,438,

Munich. t.a.p.Il, 20

R

. Porsecution also raged against the members of -
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Furfher more, their priests who were spread all over the country
laboured hers and in the south of Flindoskan zeulously, often more
zealously than our preachers. There were also none more diligent
in laarning the native languages than these. The Roman Casholies
excelled in this, and exercised great imfluence over the Parruas
{Parawas of Tutucorin &c.). They spoke, read and wrote the Tamil

' - language as readily, yea, some of them better, than the natives

thamselves, whilst many of our ministers neglected the study of
these languages. Notable exceptions in this respest wers
Rev, Servatus Claving and Hermanus Specht. Later, especially
in Colombo, the influgnce of Roman Catholiclsm was séropgly falb.

During an examination at Chunanpity, 17th Ostiocber, 1704, a
woman would have repeatied the '* Ave Maria ' if she had not been
agked nof to do so. '

Vary early there was also manifssted opposition towards

‘Romsan Cathoticism. There was then in Ceylon in eirculation,

about 1684, a small work in Portuguese against Po'pery, enfitled
" Zarenspraak tusschien een Pastor en een Iiandman ”, publighed
in Holland in 1682.7

® . =

.In Ceyloo there was violent opposition to the pagans. In
Jaffnapatnam they wera hindered, and wers not allowed to build

. pagodas. Onece, in 1767, a large temple of this kind was shot down
by cannon. Buch pagodas or chapels were built of stone, squares

wibh coveved passages round them,® the walls covered wikh figures,
and very dark inside. At fhe four corners there are small alms-
houses. Not far from the paigoda. wag generally found s sacred
pond. Sdeh pagodas usually enjoy large incomes. . A large cylin:
drioal stons in the cenbre,” almost always adorned with wreaths,
appeats to be the chief object of devotion of the Tamils, Topside
there is a strong eeho. The walls and gates of socme of the old
pugoda.s are of {reestone, found in the hills; and built up without
any morbar or cement. In 1688 the Ewmperor of Kandy, Raja

7. Munich. t.a.p. II, 38,

-8, Pagodas__HmeO temples. Pagoda aIso means a certain coin.
Its valuein 1735 was 3 1/8 Rupee, They were struck in the
Coromandel Coast. Once there was a proposal to make the
¢ Star Pagoda ' current coin.

g, .The Lingam or Phallys. Symbols of Siva, found in all Hindoo
shrines, : i ’
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Singha, requestaed to be allowed to b'uild such a pagoda in the

Company’s berritory in the lowlands. Bome were for allowing him
to do 30, But the Chureh Couneil of Colombo wrote a long fetter
on the subject to the Seventeon, in which they pointed out how,
nob only the Portuguese but all other Christians, had desiroyed

such heathen temples, but that the Government here had, by the

Iatagt placaats in 1682, forhidden it,

This lettar found much support in the fatherland. The Chureh
Counecil was praised for its zeal, and it was resolved to refuse the
requeat of this prince.*® But the Indian Governmens, less enthu-

_siastic on the point of religion than the chureh, but more anxious
for the interests of trade and policy, would conciliate fhe same
Raja Singa, and resolved (1t August, 1695) to again favour this
Bmperor of Kandy with a Company’s ship to fetch a Sagatam ox
Buddhist prisst from Arakan (Koninkrijk Ava-Achter Tndia)®*

From this incidenb, as well as {rom the following particulars,
can be seen the spirit of the times and the inconsistent conduet of
the Company. In the Church at Warny, Jatfnapatnam, a master
wag eaught teaching the youth from forbidden pagan books. Af
the instance of the preacher, Phillippus de Vriest, the teacher was
brought ag a prisoner to the Castle, where the books were openly
burnt, and the pagan master chastised and banished.

In the 18th century the Buddhist priests exercised & very pre-

judicial influence in the districts of Galle and Matura, and hindered’

the work of aducation. The Porbuguese had actually demolished
the heathen temples in Caylon and forbidden the public chservance
of idolatry, and the Dutch had enacted stringent placaats against
the same in 1682 and 1684, and vigited it with heavy fines. If was
the same with the public rites of the Romish Chureh, not only in
Uevlon but elsewhere in the Indies.

10, Cellarius,. Over the taal, wetenschappen enz. de Maljabaren. bl,
313, 314, 33T. Pridham. ta.p. L, 45, 320

1f, Secret letter of 22nd June, 1689. On the same subject see letier
zoth October, 1704 (Reaha)

DUTCH BURGHER UNION - .59

JHAPTER XII.
Study of Theology in the Indies.
Didactic Literature.

Thare were also Sinhalase books of instruction. We name in
bhe firsb plage the sormons written in thab language, or translated
into it {5 in number) which were in 1722 or 1723 distributed for

the uss of schools in the district of Colombo. Translations of

prayors and the Communion Service formed a part of these, whilst
it was proposed t6 disbribube more tracts and books among the
patives.'® There was also published in Colombe a colleetion of
sermons, in quarto, and later, in 1754, another collection.'® We
also know of a Sinhaless Prayer Book (1787 quurto). The follow -
ing year there appearsd a book of Confessions in the same language
(48 pages, oqtavo); At the same time thera ware published sucees-
sivaly more works on religion intended more as school books than
a8 ingbruetive liferature. There was also published in Ceylon, in
the former century, some (not many) instructive works in Tamil.
In the first plase we meniion the Uatechism and Prayer Book
published in Colombo (in oetavo) in 1739. . Afterwards there
appeared a translation of Bern's Shorﬁ_‘ Agcount of the Christian
Roligion for intending Communieantes, 1754, (8vo.). The Missio-

-nary, Jacob Klein, translated instructive examples from Rambach’s

“ Exempel Buchlein " (1786), and the Fnglish Common Prayer was

_ﬁr&nslated into Tamil by the Missionary J. P, Rottler.™*

CHAPTER XIII.
Christian Life.

The Eﬁropaa.ns in Colombo were, about the middle of the

" former century, not examples of religious perfection. They led, it '

i true, in some respects a moral life, but to acquire the praise and
tavounr of people was their objeet. Devoid of the religious spirit,
thay mada luxury a virbue, human frailty their blessiﬁg, and econ-
cail fheir glory! Out of a congregation numbaring 1,000, as was

12. Munich. t.a.p. I, 19. 47.
13. Tijdschrift v. Ned. Ind. 3 Jaarg. II, bl 154.
. 14« N, Gesch. des Missions Amst, 111, 1022, VI, 1077.
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the cage at Colombo, often not more than 50 attended morning:

serviee, snd in the afternoon, none,*® Rlsewhere it was not better,

T said it was not bebfer olsewhere. The report of Arnoldus
Japiin, preacher at Uolombo, on thae Sinhalesa at Matara, about the
same period (1680) is not very encouraging., ‘' The number of
idolaters is steadily on the increase, so thab the preacher, in bap-
tizing nabive children (i.e. children of the natives), hegan to hesgi-
tate and conzidet——opdat niet- het heihfge den honden zow gegaven
worden, Chrigtianity (among them) consisted more in name than
in reality. The paople refused to attend service and to gend thsir
children@ school, which Rev, Japijn asciibed to their ignomnga
of God and His exalted nature.

Hverything was dons pio forma and on compulsion, and with’

the excepbion ol one or two, the sehoolmasters looked upon their

office more as a meansg of livelihooed than as underfaken through a
‘love of truth and for the salvation of their souls and those of others.
Here is the detailed account given by Bev.Japijn i~ T1f T agk them
" & question they stand amazed, nol knowing what to say. The best
“ of them kunow searcely more than thab there is one God who dwells
“in Heaven, and bthey barely distinguish Father, Son, and Holy
*Ghost. But if I ask them the speeial functions of these three, they
" gtand with their mouths full of teeth and can make no answer.

“ One of them has actually been a soreerer, and I have resolved to

" make a close investigation into the master. With such minisbers
* the stato of the congragation may be imagined! These things did
“not come $o pass in my bime, but I have so found them. Daring
“"my lagt visit, there were some women who wished to have their
* children baptized. One of them with a child in her arms appeared
" g0 inathentive during servica, that ¥ asked her whebher ghe knew
" whare she was, and that she had to do with.a God who, although
“ Helived in Heaven, knew of everything that took place, whereupon
" she angwered that she did nofi know who this God was and where
‘ He lived. There were also many ¢ devil trees ’, of which two, sur.
“ rounded by a wall and houses, whare offerings are made, are in a
“ flourishing condition. More than once have T brought it to the
* notice of a cerbain person®® that thiz should noé be tolerated, and
“ a3 often T have been told ‘that in these matters we should nof be

15, Munich, t.a.p. I, 85. ‘ :
16, Doubtless Governor Laurens Pyl is here meant, (Translator).

8k &
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" 4o striet, obherwize all the Sinhalese would be driven oub of the

" Island’ 17 ‘The evidence relating to the native Christians of Ceylon
" also sounds very unfavourable, but it was added on fheir behalf
that there was much oo many labourers for the harvest and
" among them ga few who knew the language'. Thoy had also no
“ Bible translated into their own language, and not even the ndces-
*“"gary books ", o

' . 8‘ - . i .

The marriage of Dutch soldiers to native women was, in the
sooond half of the seventesnth contury, allowsd only to perm‘ns of
the Reformed Church, Dutchmen by birth, who were not in arrasrs
of fikeir dueas to the Company, and were skilléd in soms handieraft, -
ebe.; furbher, only with sueh women as have shewn sufficient know-

L 'le_dge ef the Christian réligion, and those whe had sabisfied the
- Minister in religious knowledge.’® The aforesaid soldiers, ag it
" were, charged the company with being the eanse of thiz state of

things, “‘As ib came to the sars of the Clagsis in the Fatherland

" on good attbhorify '—as they wrote in a letter of tha year 1700-—

“ that ot & month paﬁssgé without there being broughs for baptism
illegitimate shildren of Furopeans, becauses sailors, goldiers, quarter-
magters and corporsls were forbidden to marry, s that when thay '
are bamed about this, Shey immoediafely answer, marriage is for-

" bidden us, let ug then marry.  Where wasg the causs of thiy evil to

be sought 2

Another circumétance which worked prejudicia.lly o the Endian

-_Oompany was fhe consbant changes that took place in the ministey.
Daring the firat century of our rule in the Indies, thare were only
-5 preachers who remained eontinuonsly in the same place for 25
. years or more, Thesg warg Cornelins TLinchius, Theodorus Zag,
~ Jacobug op den Akker, Augustus Thernton, Jr., and Patruz van den

Vorm, These five were all in Batavia, in many respocts tha mosg
desirable station. In the 18th century, one of the ministers who
had the privilege of ministering uninterruptedly to the same con-

8regabion was abt Galls, Abraham Antony Engelbrecht.

17. Maunich, t,a.p. zo. Volg.
18. Tennenti’s Ceylon, 11, 57, Note.
In the memoir of Ryciof van Goens {3z Decx:, 1679, to Laurens
Pyl, Governor, thére ocours the following PASSARE jue

‘1; o}é:fl Jrouwen met zwarte vrouwen is reeds op Ceylon ver.
: v '






